
ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW TEAM  
 

MEETING MINUTES 
 

SEPTEMBER 25, 2014 
 
 
 
 
ART Members and Designees: Gary Gunderman, Planning Manager; Alan Perkins, Washington 
Township Fire Marshal; Jeff Tyler, Building Standards Director; Fred Hahn, Director of Parks and Open 
Space; Barb Cox, Engineering Manager; and Colleen Gilger, Economic Development Director. 
 
Other Staff: Jennifer Rauch, Senior Planner; Claudia Husak, Planner II; Joanne Shelly, Urban Designer, 
Landscape Architect; Devayani Puranik, Planner II; Marie Downie, Planner I; Kristin Yorko, Civil Engineer; 
Michael Clarey, Economic Development Administrator; Andrew Crozier, Planning Assistant; and Laurie 
Wright, Staff Assistant. 
 
Applicants: Rich Irelan and Tom Irelan, Dublin Building Systems; Jennifer Carney, Carney Ranker 
Architects; and Megan Cyr, The Kleingers Group. 
 
Gary Gunderman called the meeting to order. He asked if there were any amendments to the September 
18, 2014, meeting minutes. The minutes were accepted into the record as amended. 
 

CASE REVIEW 
 
1. Command Alkon           6750 Crosby Court 

 14-094WID-DP            Development Plan 
 
Jennifer Rauch said this is a request for the construction of a 30,660-square-foot building and associated 
site improvements on the south side of SR161/US 33 east of the intersection of Crosby Court. She said 
this is a request for review and approval of a Development Plan under the provisions of Zoning Code 
Section 153.042. 
 
Ms. Rauch said this application was introduced September 11, 2014. She presented the site layout and 
location on a newly platted street named Crosby Court. She said the main access to this site is off Crosby 
Court. She stated the building is oriented toward SR 161 and Crosby Court with visitor parking along the 
west portion of the site, employee parking located south of the building, and a service area to the east of 
the building. She said the parking requirements as specified are not consistent with the Code.  
 
Ms. Rauch said a list of review comments for the Development Plan application were sent prior to the 
meeting and noted a few items: 
 
Ms. Rauch explained that office use plus the warehouse use would only require 51 spaces and over 100 
spaces have been proposed and asked the applicant to explain the increased number. Megan Cyr, The 
Kleingers Group, said the parking spaces were based on the employee count provided by the client but 
they would verify the need. Ms. Rauch asked the site data and table be modified to demonstrate the 
updated information, as outlined in the comment letter.  
 

 

 
Land Use and Long 
Range Planning 
 
5800 Shier Rings Road 
Dublin, Ohio 43016-1236 

 
phone 614.410.4600 
fax  614.410.4747 
 
www.dublinohiousa.gov 
____________________ 

 



Administrative Review Team Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, September 25, 2014 

Page 2 of 3 
 
 
Ms. Rauch described the proposed building that will be clad in concrete panels with fiber cement siding, 
glass and red standing seam metal roof at the main entrance. She explained there would be no blank 
walls, which is discouraged in the Code.  
 
Ms. Rauch said the proposed stormwater pond would be within American Electric Power’s (AEP) 
easement on the east and south sides of the site. She indicated this easement provides access to AEP’s 
substation, which is to the south.  
 
Fred Hahn asked if having the wet detention basin in AEP’s easement was an issue. Ms. Cox said she has 
plans to meet with AEP to address the issue of the wet detention basin and gain feedback from AEP.  
 
Barb Cox indicated that stormwater calculations are needed with the building permit. Ms. Cyr said the 
stormwater calculations were in the preliminary materials and would be provided.  
 
Ms. Cox asked the applicant to indicate the location of the water meter. She said size and location of the 
water service for this building will need to be coordinated with the public improvement drawings for 
Crosby Court. She said originally there was a six-inch line for water service but an eight-inch line should 
stretch across the road. She said that fire hydrants are needed on this site.  
 
Alan Perkins inquired about the drive aisle on the west side of the building, the building suppressed 
hydrant on site, and its proximity to the other hydrant. He said for proper analysis, he needs to be able to 
take measurements from the plans. 
 
Ms. Cyr said an eight-inch line will run underground but a six-inch line is used for fire.  
 
Rich Irelan, Dublin Building Systems, confirmed the water service lines were part of the street 
development.  
 
Ms. Cox said future expansion is what is shown on the plan. She said expansion could be accounted for 
now by running the larger lines under the street to prevent future disruption. Mr. Perkins requested that 
the future plans be reflected on the drawings. Ms. Cox confirmed there would be a hydrant on the 
backside of the building. 
 
Ms. Cox said the size of the sewer line is appropriate but the location will need to be coordinated with the 
public improvements currently under design. Mr. Hahn asked who is extending the sanitary line. Ms. Cox 
said the City will put the sanitary work out to bid later this year. Mr. Hahn confirmed the lines would go in 
over winter.  
 
Ms. Cox said the proposed grading appears to work with what we know is currently proposed with the 
public improvements and confirmed that no turn lanes would be added to SR161. Mr. Hahn confirmed 
that the ditches would stay. 
 
Mr. Perkins inquired about the turn radius on the site. He said there was probably room to get equipment 
onto the site, but sprinkler systems will eliminate turnaround issues. He said because of the driveway 
aisle on the west side and the FDC, the turn radius may need to be adjusted. He requested a hard copy 
of the plans to review.  
 
Ms. Rauch inquired about the concrete screening wall and requested details of the panels. 
 



Administrative Review Team Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, September 25, 2014 

Page 3 of 3 
 
 
Mr. Irelan said there are three 25-foot precast concrete panels. Jennifer Carney, Carney Ranker 
Architects, said the panels sit in the I-beam groove. Ms. Cox said this was not in the renderings. Ms. 
Rauch requested revised plans.  
 
Claudia Husak asked what color the concrete panels would be painted. Mr. Irelan said the concrete 
panels would be painted to match the building. 
 
Ms. Rauch said the vehicular use area on the south side of the building and loading dock needs to be 
screened from the adjacent property line. She said one deciduous tree planted every 40 feet is also 
required in this buffer and landscaping needs to be located outside of the utility easements.  
 
Ms. Rauch said both standing seam metal roof pieces at the front entrance were red. Ms. Carney 
confirmed they were red and the flat roof on the remainder of the building would be white, but that 
portion would not be visible.   
 
Mr. Tyler inquired about the manufacturing testing area and asked if any process would require anything 
to project above the building. Mr. Ireland said nothing would project, as the company does electronic 
hardware assembly. Mr. Tyler asked if there would be testing of any kind at this facility. Mr. Irelan said 
any testing would be very clean technology with no exhaust issues. 
 
Ms. Cox inquired about generator space. Mr. Irelan said a transformer and backup generator would be 
located in the planting bed area at the southeast corner of the building.  
 
Ms. Rauch requested the mechanics incorporated into the landscaping be shown on the plans.  
 
Ms. Cox said she was pleased to see the HVAC units placed on the roof and screened by the parapet. 
 
Ms. Rauch inquired about the concrete pad and asked if this will serve as a patio area for employees. Mr. 
Irelan said tables and chairs would be provided in this area.  
 
Mr. Perkins emphasized that any generators on-site would require screening. 
 
Mr. Irelan inquired about the Dark Sky’s Initiative. Joanne Shelly explained the Dark Sky’s Initiative 
ensures light is completely projected downward while not over flooding the area with light. Ms. Rauch 
suggested the applicant refer to the lighting provisions in the Code for further guidance.  
 
Ms. Rauch concluded the plans need to be revised to address the ART’s concerns and said whatever was 
not incorporated into the plans could be conditioned. 
 
Gary Gunderman asked the ART if there were any further questions or concerns regarding this 
application. [There were none.] He stated that a determination on this request was scheduled for next 
week’s ART meeting. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

Gary Gunderman asked if there were any additional administrative issues or other items for discussion. 
[There were none.] The meeting was adjourned at 2:25 pm. 
 


